
POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED 

CIN U40106DL201lGOl219542 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH,2019 

Particulars ·Note No As at 31st March2019 
ASSETS 

Non-current assets 

Property Plant and Equipment 4 1,23,412.96 
Capital work-in-pr.ogr.ess 5 457.42 
Other Intangible assets 6 -
Deffered Tax Asset ·(Net) 7 6,805.74 

Other non-current assets 8 19.61 

1,30,695.73 

Current assets 

Financial Assets 

Trade receivables 9 860.36 

Cash and cash equivalents 10 73.51 

Other current financial assets 11 121.72 

1,055.59 
Total Assets 1,31,751.32 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 

Equity Share capital 12 26,400.00 

Other Equity 13 (16,565.23) 

9,834.77 

Liabilities 

Non-current liabilities 

Financial Liabilities 

Borrowings 14 1,03,202.44 
··' 1,03,202.44 

' 
Current liabilities 

Financial Liabilities < 

Trade Payable .. 15 

(i) Total Outstanding dues of Micro Er.terprise and Small 
Enterprise -

(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro 

Enterprises and Small Enterprises 0.93 

Other current financial liabilities 16 18,213.49 

Other current liabilities 17 - 499.69 

- 18,714.11 

Total Equity and Liabilities 1,31,751.32 

The accompanying notes (1to41) form an integral ·part of financial statements 

(~in Lakhs) 

As at 31st March2018 

74,554.92 

39,744.32 

0.03 

4,194.53 

45.80 

1,18,539.60 

3.22 
c 

1.90 

5.12 
1,18,544. 72 

21,200.00 

(10,209.31) 

10,990.69 

92,149.73 

92,149.73 

-

1.40 

14,909.09 

493.81 

15,404.30 

1,18,544.72 

For anff on behalf of Board of Directors 

Place : Gurgaon 

Date : 20-May-2019 

. . 
... 

. , 

(Seema Gupta) 
ChairpeTson 
DIN : 06636330 
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POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED 

CIN U4Ql06DL2011GOl219542 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

For the year 

Note ended 31st 

Particulars No. March,2019 

Revenue From Operations 18 1584.70 

Other Income 19 28.92 

Total Income (1+11) 1613.62 

EXPENSES 

Finance costs 20 5566.43 

Depreciation and amortization expense 21 4771.38 

Transmission, admin and Other expenses 22 242.94 

Total expenses (IV) 10580.75 

Profit/( loss) before tax (Ill-IV) (8967.13) 
c 

Tax expense: 

Current tax -

Deferred tax (2611.21) 

Profit (Loss) for the period(V-VI) (6355 .92) 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (Vll+Vlll) (6355.92) 

Earnings per equity share (Par value of~ 10 each): 

Basic ( ~) (2 .70) 
Diluted ( ~) (2.70) 
The accompanying notes (1 to 41) form an integral part of financial statements 

(~in Lakhs) 

For the year 

ended 31st 

March,2018 

0.00 

37.59 

37.59 

5197.89 

4265 .98 

2079.10 

11542.97 

(11505.38) 

-

(3191.30) 

(8314.08) 

(8314.08) 

(4.02) 

(4.02) 

As per our report .of even date 
For.~ cf.. 1kalh/-a­
Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

Place: Gur-gaon 

Date : 20-May-2019 

.. . 

= 

(Seema Gupta) 

. . 



POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED 

CIN U40106DL2011G01219S42 

STATEMENT OF CASH HOWS i;QR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH,2019 

Description 

A. CASH FLOW FROM -OPERATING ACTIVITIES-

Net profit before tax 

Adjustments for 

Provision fo r Others 

Depreciation fo r the year 

Interest and Finance Charges 

Operating profit before Working Capital Changes 

Adjustments For 

Other Current Assets 

Short Term Loans & Advances 

Current Liabili t ies & Provisions 

Cash generated from operations 

Direct Ta xes Paid 

Net Cash generated from operations 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Property Plant and Equipment and Capital work in progress 

·' 

Net cash used in investing activities 

c. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 

' ISSUE\ .Of Share Capital 

Sha re Appl ication Money pending Allotment 

Loan from Holding Company 

Interest pa id on Loan from Holding Company 

Net cash from financing activities 

-= 
D. Net Change In Cash and Cash equivalent (A+B+C) 

.,_ 
E. Cash and Cash equivalent (Opening Balance) 

F. Cash and Cash equivalent (Clossing Balarn:e) 

The accompanying notes (1 to 41 ) form an integral part of financial statements 

Further Notes : 

1. Cash & Cash equivalents consist of balances with bank in current account. 

2. Previous year figures have been re-groupped / re-ar-ranged whereever required. 

.. ., 

As per our report of even date 
For Jka14a. IL 
Chartered Acco ·--"==---

Place: Gurgaon 

· Oate : 20-May-2019 

= 

{Seema Gupta) 

For the year ended 

31.03.2019 

(8,967.13) 

-

4,771.38 

5,566.43 

1,370.68 

I> 

(980.17) 

(4,258.43) 

(3,867.92) 

(0.04) 

(3,867.96) 

(11,851.06) 

(11,851.06) 

5,200.00 

16,160.75 

(5,571.44) 

lS,789.31 

70.29 

3.22 

73.51 

(>;in Lakhs) 

For the year end ed 

31.03 .2018 

(11,505.38) 

1,891.99 

4,265.98 

5,197 .89 

(149.52) 

5.84 

(1,120.74) 

(1,264.42) 

{4.54) 

(1,268.96) 

(9,067.88) 

(9,067.88) 

' 5,000.00 

0.00 

8,505.00 

(3,171.27) 

10,333.73 

(3.11) 

6.33 

3.22 

. ----
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POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED 

CIN U40106Dl2011GOl219542 1 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST M!\RCH, 2019 

A. Equity Share Capital 

(!l( in lakhs} 

As at 1st April,2018 21,200.00 

Changes in equity share capital 5,200.00 

As at 31st March ,2019 26,400.00 

As at 1st April,2017 13,400.00 

Changes in equity share capital I ' I I I ' I 7,800.00 

B. Other Equity 

Share application money pending 
Reserve.~ and Surplus 

Particulars 
allotment " 

Retained Earnings 

81l1nce at 1st ADrll,2018 (10,209.31) 
Tot•I ComDrehenslve Income for the yeu (6,355.92) 

. Other Changes 

Balance at 31st March, 2019 . (16,565.23} 

Balance at 1st April,2017 2,800.00 (1,895.23) 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (8,314.08) 

Other Changes (2,800.00) 

Balance at 31st March, 2018 . {10,209.31} 

. 
The accompanying notes (1to41) form an integral part of financial statements 

Refer Note 12 for movement and nature of Reserve and Surplus 

As per our report of even date 

For "llf.al4a. 8. "llf.al4a. 

Place: Gurgaon 

Date : 20-May-2019 

}~ 
(Seema Gupta) 
Chairperson 

DIN : 06636330 

(A.K. Das) 

CFO 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

(!l( in lakhs} 

Total 

(10,209.31) 
(6,355.92) 

. 
(16,565.23} 

904.77 

(8,314.08) 

(2,800.00) 
0 (10,209.31) 
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POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED 
Note 4/Property, Plant and Equipment 

Particulars 

Plant & Equipment 
. a) Transmission 

b) Cornmunlc1tlon System 
Furniture Flxtur11 

II 

Elect onlc Data Processing & word Processing Machines 
ota 

Previous Year Total 

POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED 

Note 4/Property, 'Plant and Equipment . 
Part9culan 

,., 

Plant & Equipment 

a) Transmission 

b) Communication System 

Furniture Fixtures 
Electronic Data Processing & Word Processing Machines 

Total 

A~ i t l~t I AddltlonJ 
A rll,2018 

80,285.96 
400.57 

1.00 

As at 1st 
Aprll,2017 

80,151.94 

400.57 

0.58 
1.02 

80,554.11 

during the year 

53,603.96 

I Addttlons during I 
the year 

0.42 

0.42 

Cost 

Adjustment 
II during the As at 31st 

Disposal year March,2019 

-25.47 ·1,33,915.39 
400.57, 

1.00 
1.02 

Cost 

I Adjustment " 
As at 31st 

Disposal during the year March,2018 

-134.02 80,285 .96 

400.57 

1.00 
1.02 

-134.02 80,688.55 

(~in Lakhs) 
Accumulated depreciation Net Book Value 

Adjustmen 

As at 1st Additions durihg t during As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st 
April,2018 the year Disposal the year March,2019 March,2019 March,2018 

6,094.23 4,744.47 10,838.70 1,23,076.69 74,191.73 
38.41 26 .70 65 .11 335.46 362 .16 

0.12 0.06 0.18 0.82 
0.87 

n a 1S ( ~I L kt ) 
Accumulated depreciation Net Book Value 

I Adjustment I 
I As at 1st I Additions during I during the As at 31st As at 31st 

April,2017 the year Disposal .,, year As at 31st March,2018 March,2018 March,2017 

1,855.13 4,239 .10 6,094 .23 74,191.73 78,296.81 
11.71 · 26.70 38.41 362 .16 388.86 
0.06 0.06 0.12 0.88 0.52 
0.71 0.16 0.87 0.15 0.31 

1,867.61 4,266.02 6, 133.63 74,554.92 78,686 .50 
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POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION Ll~ltED 11 
I 

Note 5/Capltal work In progress 

Particulars 

Plant & Equipments (Including associated clvll works) 
a) Trahsmlssion 

Expenditure pending allocatloh 

i) Survey investigation consultancy & supervision Charges 

ii) Expenditure during construction period(net) ( Note 23) 

Construction Stores 

Previous Year Total 

POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED 
Note 5/Capltal work In progress 

Plant & Equipments (Including associated clvll works) 

a) Transmission 

Expenditure pending allocation 

i) Survey, investigation, consultancy & supervision Charges 

ii) Expenditure during construction period(net) 

Construction Stores 

POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED 
Note 5/Capltal work In progress (Details of Construction stores) 

At cost) 

Particulars 

Costructlon Stores 

Towers 
Conductors 
Othe.r Line Materials 
TOTAL 
Con1tructlon Storea Include: 
M11terl11I with Contractora 
Towers 

Conductors 

Other Line Materials 

Total 

Additions during the 
As at 1st Aprll2018 year 

30,236.39 

34.44 

5,163.35 

4,288.14 

39,744.32 

28,678.38 

A• at 111 Aprll,2017 

18,059.93 

34.44 

2,409.53 

8, 174.48 

28,678.38 

14,641 .67 

3,305.91 

18,147.78 

14,952.28 

yHr 

12, 178.46 

2,773.82 

14,952.28 

(~in Lakhs) 
Capitalised during the 

Adjustments year As at 31st March2019 As at 31st March2018 

45,060.26 30,236.39 

34.44 34.44 

8,489.26 5, 183.35 

3,830.72 457.42 4,288.14 
3,830.72 53,603.96 457.42 39,744.32 

3,886.34 39,744.32 28,678.38 

~ In Lakhs 
I II 3 II I II II 

Adju1tm1nt1 year March,2018 March,2017 

30,238.39 18 ,059.93 

34.44 34.44 

5,183.35 2,409.53 

3,886.34 4,288 14 8,1744b 

3,886.34 39,744.32 28 ,678.38 

(~in Lakh.s) 

As at 31st March2019 As at 31st March2018 

288.38 640.59 

83.88 2,911 .74 

85.16 735.81 

457.42 4,288 .14 

428.50 

2,901 .98 

703.09 

4,033.57 
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POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED 
Note 6/0ther Intangible assets 

Particulars 

Additions 
As at 1st during the 

.. , Aprll,2018 year 

Electronic Data Processing Software 0.15 -
Total 0.15 -
Previous Year Total 0.15 

POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED 
Note 6/0ther Intangible assets 

--Partic.ulars 

Additions 
As at 1st during the 

Aprll,2017 year 

Electronic Data Processing Software 0.15 -
Total 0.15 -

I II 

Cost 
Adjustment 
during the As at 31st 

Disposal year March,2019 

- - 0.15 

- - 0.15 

0.15 

Cost 

Adjustment 
during the As at 31st 

Disposal year March,2016 

- - 0.15 

- - 0.15 

(~in Lakhs) 

Accumulated Amortisation Net Book Value 

As at 1st Additions during the Adjustment As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st 
April,2018 year Disposal during the year March,2019 March,2019 March,2016 

0.12 0.03 ,,, - 0.15 - 0 03 

0.12 0.03 - - 0.15 - 0.03 

0.10 0.02 0.12 0.03 0.04 

(~in Lakhs) 

Accumulated Amortisation Net Book Value 

As at 1st Additions during the Adjustment As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st 

April ,2017 year Disposal during the year March,2016 March ,2016 Ma rch,2017 

0.10 0.02 - - 0.12 0.03 0. 05 

0:10 0.02 - - 0.12 0.03 0.05 



POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED 

Note 7 I Deferred tax Assets (Net) 

Deferred Tax Liability 

Difference in book Depreciatio 11<tl'<utJ~· 

Deferred Tax Liability (A) 

'ovements in Deferred Tax Liabilities 

As at 01st April 2017 

Charged/(Credited) 

- to Profit or Loss 

- to Other Comprehensive Income 

As at 31st March 2018 

Charged/(Credited) 

- to Profit or loss 

- to Other Comprehensive Income 

As at 31st March 2019 

Movements in Deferred Tax Assets 

As at 01 st April 2017 

1r,harged)/Credited 

o Profit or Loss 
. .. ... . ....... .. 

- to Other Comprehensive Income 

As at 31" March 2018 

(Charged)/Credited 

- to Profit or loss 

- to Other Comprehensive Income 

As at 31 51 March 2019 

Amount taken to Statement of Profit and Loss 

Particulars 

lncrease/(Decrease) in Deferred Tax Liabilities 

ment 
4,232.46 

3,340.98 

7,573.44 

3,463.89 

11,037.33 

Property, Plant and 
Equipment·· 

Others 

Unused Tax 
·········Losses· --

5,224.67 

() ,_5?~:52 ... 

11,754.19 

6,077.85 

17,832.04 

(~in Lakhs) 
As at 31st March As at 31st March 

2019 2018 

11,037.33 7,573.44 

11 ,037.33 7,573.44 

17,837.56 11,762.46 

5.51 5.51 

17,843.07 11 ,767.97 

6,805.74 4,194.53 

(~in Lakhs) 

Total 

4,232.46 

3,340.98 

7,573.44 

3,463.89 

11,037.33 

(~in Lakhs) 

Preliminary 
Total 

·········· Expenses ········ . ·---·--·--·---···--·---

11.02 5,235.69 

..... (2.75) 6,526-77 

8.27 11,762.46 

(2.75) 6,075.10 

5.52 17,8~7.56 

As at 31st March As at 31st March 
2019 2018 

3,463.89 3,340.98 

(6,075.10) (6,526.77) 

-. 

-2,611 .21 -3, 185.79 
! 

·--···--------·· 
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POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED 
Note 8/0ther non-current Assets 
(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

A) Advances for Capital Expenditure 

Unsecured 

Against bank guarantees 

B) Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 

Balance with Customs Port Trust and other authorities 

Advance tax and Tax deducted at source 

TOTAL 

(~in Lakhs) 

As at 31st As at 31st 
March,2019 March,2018 

31 .08 

5.00 0.15 

14.61 14.57 

19.61 45.80 

0 
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·\ POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED 
Note 09/Trade receivables 

(~in Lakhs) 
As at 31st As at 31st 

Particulars March,2019 March,2018 

Trade receivables 
Unsecured Considered good 860.36 -

860.36 -
TU ,·AL 860.36 -------·-

·. 

0 

.• 
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POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED 
Note 10/Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Particulars 

Balance with banks-

-In Current accounts 

Total 

As at 31st March,2019 

73.51 

73.51 

(~in Lakhs) 

As at 31st March,2018 

3.22 

3.22 

0 
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POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED 
Note 11/0ther Current Financial Assets 
(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated) 

I Particulars 

1) Unbilled Revenue 
Less : Provision for bad & doubtful debt 

2) lnt~rest accrued but not due 

Interest accrued on Others 

3) Others 

I Total 

(1' in Lakhs) 

As at 31st As at 31st 
March,2019 March,2018 

2,013.71 1,891 .99 

1,891 .99 1,891 .99 

121 .72 -

- 0.04 

- 1.86 

121 .72 1.90 

0 
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POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED 
Note 12/Equity Share capital 

Particulars 

Equity Share Capital 
[Authorised 

264000000 (31st March 2018 : 215000000) equity shares of~ 10/- each at 
par 

Issued, subscribed and paid up 

264000000 (31st March 2018: 212000000) equity shares of~ 10/-each at par 
fully paid up 
IOtal 
t'urmer ·Notes: 

As at 31st March,2019 

26,400.00 

26,400.00 
26,400.00 

1) Reconciliation of Number and amount of share capital outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period 

Particulars For the year ended 31st March, 2019 

No.of Shares I (~in Lakhs) 

::;nares outstandin at the be innin ot the ear 212000 00 9 g g y ,,,0 21 200.00 

(" in Lakhs) 
As at 31st March,2018 

21,500.00 

21~00.00 

21,200.00 

For the year ended 31st March, 2018 

No.of Shares I (~ in Lakhs) 

13 40 00 000 13 400.00 
Shares Issued during the year 5,20,00,000 5,200.00 7,80,00,000 7,800.00 

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 26,40,00,000 26,400.00 21 ,20,00,000 21,200.00 

2) The Company has only one class of equity shares having a per value of~ 10/- per share. 

3) The holders of equity shares are entitled to receive dividJnds as declared from time to time and are entitled to voting rights proportionate to their shareholding at 
meetings of the Shareholders . 

. 4) Shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares of the Company 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2019 As at 31st March, 2018 

No.'of Shares # % of holdlng No.of SharH # % of holding 

i)Power Grid Corporation of India Ltd 26,40,00,000 100.00 21,20,00,000 100.00 

O Equity Shares are held by Nominees of M/s Power Grid Corporation of India Limited on 

I I 
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POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED 

Note 13/0ther Equity 

Particulars 

Share Application Money pending Allotment 

Reserves & Surplus 
Re'tained Earnings 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Add : Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss 
Balance at the end of the year 

TOTAL 

II 

(~in Lakhs) 

As at 31st As at 31st 
March,2019 March,2018 

0 

(10,209.31) (1 ,895.23) 
(6,355.92) (8 ,314.08) 

(16,565.23) (10,209.31) 

(16,565.23) (10,209.31) 

I I 
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POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED 

Note 14/ Borrowings 

>. Description 

Loan ( Unsecured) 

Loan from Power Grid Corporation of India Ltd. (Holding Company) 
TOTAL 

Further notes: 

(~ in Lakhs) 
As at 31st March As at 31st March 

2019 2018 

1,03,202.44 92,149.73 

. . 1,03,202.44 92,149.73 

The Inter Corporate Loan is provided by the Holding Company on cost to cost basis carrying interest rate 
ranging from 7.20% to 8.93% and the loan is repayable generally over a period of 14 to 15 years starting 
from 27-May-2019. 

0 
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POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED 
Note 15/Trade Payable 

Particulars 

(i) Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprise and Small Enterprise 
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 
Total 

As at 31st 
March,2019 

0.93 

0.93 

(~in Lakhs) 
As at 31st 

March,2018 

1.40 

1.40 

Note: Disclosure of Micro and Small Enterprises as required under"micro small and _medium enterprises Development Act,2006' is given in 
note 31 (C). 

.I ii I 

,., 

0 
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POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMI rED 
Note 16/0ther Current Financial Liabilities 

Particulars 

A) Current maturities of long term borrowings 

Un Secured 

Loan from Power Grid Corporation of India Ltd. (Holding Cd>moanvl 

B) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings from 

Loan from Power Grid Corporation of India ltd. 

C) Others 
Dues for capital expenditure 

Deposits/Retention money from contractors and others 

Related parties (M/s Power Grid Corporation of India Ltd) 
-Interest Accrued and due 
-others 

Others* 

Total 

II I 11 I I I' I II 

As at 31st 
March,2019 

5,388.12 

5,388.12 

3,863.17 

3,863.17 

306.80 

1,021 .02 

5,962.75 

774.93 

896.70 

8,962.20 

18,213.49 

(~in Lakhs) 
As at 31st 

March,2018 

280.08 

280.08 

3,777.57 

3,777 .57 

639.44 

1,745.81 

3,588.15 

4,533.00 

345.04 

10,851.44 

14,909.09 

*Other Liabilities pertaining to Contractor/Suppliers and Tree/Crop/Corridor Compensation liability. 

Disclosure with regard to Micro and Small enterprises as required under "The Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006" is given in Note No 31 (c) ' 

.., 
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POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED 

Note 17/0ther current liabilities 

Particulars 

Statutory dues 
Total 

11 

As at 31st 
March,2019 

499.69 . 

'. 499.69 

("in Lakhs) 
As at 31st 

March,2018 

493.81 

493.81 



POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED 
Note 18/Revenue from operations 

Particulars 

Sales of Services 

Transmission Charges 
Total 

For the year ended 
31st March,2019 

1,584.70 

1,584.70 

(~in Lakhs) 
For the year 
ended 31st 
March,2018 

Upon commissioning of the 765 kV Salem-Madhugiri Transmission Line w.e. f. 26-Jan-2019, the transmission tariff has 
been included in the PoC. The revenue has has been recognised as per the tariff specified in the Transmission Service 
Agreement (TSA). Project cost has increased due to ROW & force-majeur and petition is under process to be filed with 
CERC. 
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POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED 
Note 19/0ther income 

Particulars 

Interest from advances to contra~tors1 

FERV gain 

Miscellaneous income* 

I I 

Less: Income transferred to expenditure during construction(Net)-Note 23 
TOTAL 

•Sale of Scrap and Rebate on RLDC charges 

(~in Lakhs) 

For the year For the year 
ended 31st ended 31st 
March,2019 March,2018 

I 
4 .89 

0.43 

28 .92 42 .20 

28 .92 47 .52 

9.93 

28.92 37.59 
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POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED 

II I I 
Note 20/Finance costs 

Particulars 

Interest and finance charges on financial liabilities at amortised cost 

Loan from Power Grid Corporation of India Limited (Holding Company) 

Less: Transferred to Expenditure during Construction(Net)-Note 23 

TOTAL 

(~in Lakhs) 

·· For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March,2019 31st March,2018 

8,031 .64 

8,031 .64 

2,465.21 

5,566.43 

7,148.09 

7,148.09 

1,950.20 

5, 197.89 
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POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED 
Note 21/Depreciation and amortization expense 

Particulars 

Depreciation of Property.Plant and Equipment 

Amortisation of Intangible assets 

Less: Transferred to Expenditure During Construction(Net)-Note 23 

TOTAL 

·. 

(~in Lakhs) 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March,2019 31st March,2018 

4,771 .39 4,266.02 

0.03 0.02 

4, 771.42 4,266.04 

0.04 .,0.06 

4,771 .38 4,265.98 

4,771.38 4,265.98 



POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED 

Note 22/0ther expenses 

(~in Lakhs) 
For the year For the year 
ended 31st ended 31st 

Particulars March,2019 March,2018 

Repai,r & Maintenance 

Buildings 

Plant & Machinery 

Transmission lines 194.61 . 170.48 

Others 11.54 5.30 

206.15 175.78 

System and Market Operation Charges 3.41 2.70 

Water charges 0.04 

. ' Legal expenses 55.82 4.31 

Professional charges(lncluding T AIDA) 1.03 0.50 

\ 
Consultancy expenses(lncluding TA/DA) 677.42 746.25 

Communication expenses 0.01 0.11 

Travelling & Conv.exp.(excluding foreign travel) 0.94 13.95 

Payments to Statutory Auditors 

Audit Fees 2.30 1.69 

Tax Audit Fees 0.24 0.24 

Out of pocket Expenses 0.54 0.76 

3.08 2.69 

Advertisement and publicity 3.69 
Printing and stationery 2.31 2.38 

EDP hire and other charges 0.84 0.67 

Entertainment expenses 0.02 

Brokerage & Commission 1.57 1.09 

CERC petition & Other charges 8.00 5.00 

Miscellaneous expenses 12.12 5.26 

Security Expenses 0.49 

• Hiring of Vehicle 80.62 55.45 

Rates and taxes 4.47 4.24 

Foreign Exchange Rate Variation (Net of FERV gain & amount recoverable) 21 .38 

Provisions 1891 .99 

Bank charges 0.25 0.17 

1,083 .60 2912.60 

Less:Transferred to Expenditure during Construction(Net)-Note 23 840.66 833.50 

242.94 2,079.10 . .. Total 242.94 2,079.10 

'; 



POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED 

Note 23/ Expenditure during Construction (Net) 

Particulars 

A.Other Expenses 

Repair and maintenance 

Others 

Legal expenses 

Professional charges 

Consultancy expenses 

Communication expenses 

Travelling & Conv.exp. 

PaymJnt to Auditors 

Advertisement and Publicity 

Printing and stationery 

EDP hire and other charges 

Brokerage and commission 

Miscellaneous expenses 

Hiring of Vehicles 

Rates and taxes 

Total( A) 

B.Depreciation/Amortisation 

C.Finance Costs 

Interest and finance charges on financial liabilities at amortised 
cost 

Loan from Power Grid Corporation of India Ltd (Holding . 
Company) 

Total ( C) 

D. Less: Other Income 

Interest from Contractors 

Miscellaneous income 

Total (D) 
GRAND TOT AL (A+B+C-D) 

8.92 

For the year 
ended 31st 
March,2019 

8.92 

55.66 

0.41 

677.42 

0.94 

1.19 

3.69 

2.00 

0.70 

0.57 

10.73 

74.24 

4.19 

840.66 

0.04 

2,465.21 

2,465.21 

3,305.91 

(~in Lakhs) 
For the year 
ended 31st 
March,2018 

-· 

6.25 

6.25 

3.82 

a.so 
746.25 

0:03 

12.68 

2.69 

2.13 

0.67 

4.39 

49.84 

4.24 

833.50 

0.06 

1,950.20 

1,950.20 

4.44 

5.49 

9.93 

2,773.82 

. . ....... 
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Notes to financial Statements 0 

1. Corporate & General Information 

Powergrid NM Transmission Limited ("the Company") is a company domiciled and 
incorporated in India under the provisions of Companies Act and is wholly owned 
subsidiary of Power Grid Corporation of India Limited. The Company is principally 
engaged to develop, construct, operate and maintain power system network for the 
purpose of transmission of electricity through the states of Tamil Nadu and Karnataka 
(Project).The registered office of the Company is situated at 8-9, Qutablnstitutinal Area, 
KatwariaSarai , New Delhi-110 016 .The Company was incorporated on 20thMay 2011 
under the Companies Act, 1956 as a wholly owned subsidiary of PFC Consulting Limited 
(PFCCL), (A wholly owned subsidiary of Power Finance Corporation Ltd, a Govt. of India 
Undertaking.). The company was transferred to Power Grid Corporation of India Limited 
vide Share purchase Agreement dated 29th March 2012 by the PFCCL. After transfer, the 
company became a subsidiary of Power Grid Corporation of India Ltd. Name of the 
company has since been changed from NAGAPATTINAM-MADHUGIRI TRANSMISSION 
COMPANY LIMITED to POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED (referred to as •the 
company" or "PNMTL")during the FY 2012-13. The Project consists of construction of 
765kV Double Circuit Transmission Line between Nagapattinam Pooling Station-Salem 
(Line Length 202.87 KM Approx) and 765kV Single Circuit Transmission Line between 
Salem-Madhugiri (Line Length 219.079 KM Approx). The 765kV Double Circuit 
Transmission Line between Nagapattinam Pooling Station-Salem was commissioned on 
23-0ct-2016 and the ~65kV Single Circuit Transmission Line between Salem-Madhugiri is 
commissioned very recently i.e on 26-Jan-2019. 

The Financial Statement~ of the company for the year ended 31 51 March 2019 were 
approved for issue by the Board of the directors on 20th May 2019. 

2. Significant Accounting Policies 

2.1 Basis of Preparation 

i) Compliance with Ind AS 

The financial statements are prepaired in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013(the Act), 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, the relevant provisions of 
Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent notified), the Companies Act, 1956 (to the extent 
applicable) and the provisions of the Electricity Act, 2003 to the extent applicable and 
as amended thereafter. 

ii) Basis of Measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis and under the 
historical cost convention except following which have been measured at fair. value: 

• Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer Note 
no. 2.11 for accounting policy regarding financial instruments), 

. ·--- . 



iii) Functional and presentation currency 0 

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rupees or ~) . which is the 
Company's functional and presentation currency and all amounts are rounded to the 
nearest lakhs and two decimals thereof, .except as stated otherwise 

iv) Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses during the reporting 
period. Although, such estimates and assumptions are made on a reasonable and 
prudent basis taking into account all available information, actual results could differ 
from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an 
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which 
the estimate is revised if the revision effects only that period or in the period of the 
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future years (refer 
Note no. 3 on critical accountin~stimates, assumptions and judgments). 

v) Current and Non Current Classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on 
currenUnon-current classification. 

An asset is current when it is: 

• Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating 
cycle; 

• Held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
• Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
• Cash o~ cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when: 

• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; 
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
• There is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period. 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-current. 

The Company recognizes twelve months period as its operating cycle 

2.2 Property, Plant and Equipment 

-. ---- . 

Initial Recognition and Measurement 

Property, Plant and E i,u~rft ~?initially measured at cost of acquisition/construction 
including any costs ife"etf ' attributab e to bringing the asset to the location and 
condition necessa .:~:1t ~o ~ ~~pable of operating in the m~nner ~Alen~~d by 
management. A Qlt1al recognition, Property, Plant and Equ1pme (J: F at 

~ -~- ~ ~~ t' or'\ 
-:;,~ 17< ~ ,• 

,, . ' 
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cost less accumulated depreciation I amortisatio~ and accumulated impairment losses, 
if any. 

Property, Plant and Equipment acquired as replacement of the existing assets are 
capitalized and its corresponding replaced assets removed/ retired from active use are 
derecognized. 

If the cost of the replaced part or earlier inspection is not available, the estimated cost 
of similar new parts/inspection is used as an indication of what the cost of the existing 
part/ inspection component was when the item was acquired or inspection was carried 
out. 

In the case of commissioned assets, where final settlement of bills with contractors is 
yet to be effected, capitalization is done on provisional basis subject to necessary 
adjustments in the year of final settlement. 

Assets and systems common to more than one transmission system are capitalized on 
the basis of technical estimates/ assessments. 

Transmission system assets are considered qS ready for intended use after meeting 
the conditions for commercial operation as stipulated in Transmission Service 
Agreement (TSA) and capitalized accordingly. 

The cost of land includes provisional deposits, payments/liabilities towards 
compensation, rehabilitation and other expenses wherever possession of land is 
taken. 

Expenditure on J,eveling, clearing and grading of land is capitalized as part of cost of 
the related buildings. 

Spares parts whose cost is ~5 .00,000/- and above, standby equipment and servicing 
equipment which meets the recognition criteria of Property, Plant and Equipment are 
capitalized. · 

Subsequent costs 

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in carrying amount of assets 
when it is probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will 
flow to the company and cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

The cost of replacing part of an item of PPE is recognized in the carrying amount of 
the item if it is probable that future economic benefit embodied within the part will flow 
to the company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the 
replaced part is derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant 
and equipment are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss as incurred. 

De-recognition 

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized when no future economic 
benefits are expected from their use or upo"n disposal. 

....... .. 



2.3 Capital Work-In-Progress (CWIP) 0 

Cost of material, erection charges and other expenses incurred for the construction of 
Property, Plant and Equipment are shown as CWIP based on progress of erection 
work till the date of capitalization. 

Expenditure of office and -Projects, attributable to construction of property, plant and 
equipment are identified and allocated on a systematic basis to the cost of the related 
assets. 

Interest during construction and expenditure (net) allocated to construction as per 
policy above are kept as a separate item under CWIP and apportioned to the assets 
being capitalized in proportion to the closing balance of CWIP. 

Unsettled liability for price variation/exchange rate variation in case of contracts is 
accounted for on estimated basis as per terms of the contracts. 

2.4 Intangible Assets and Intangible Assets under development 

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. After initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and 
accumulated impairment losses. 

Subsequent expenditure on already capitalized Intangible assets is capitalised when it 
increases the future economic benefits embodied in an existing asset and is amortised 
prospectively. 

The cost of software(which is not an integral part of the related hardware) acquired for 
internal use and resulting in significant future economic benefits is recognized as an 
intangible asset when the same is ready for its use. 

Afforestation charges for acquiring right-of-way for laying transmission lines are 
accounted for as intangible assets on the date of capitalization of related transmission 
lines. 

Expenditure incurred, eligible for capitalization under the head Intangible Assets, are 
carried as "Intangible Assets under Development9 till such assets are ready for their 
intended use. 

Expenditure on research shall be recognised as an expense when it is incurred. 

Expenditure on development shall be recognised as Intangible asset if it meets the 
eligibility criteria as per Ind AS 38 'Intangible Assets', otherwise it shall be recognised 
as an expense. 

An item of Intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from 
derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised. 

•• . .. 
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2.5 Depreciation I Amortisatiof\ 

.. 

Property, Plant & Equipment 

Depreciation/amortisation on the assets related to transmission business is provided 
on straight line method following the rates and methodology notified by the CERC for 
the purpose of recovery of tariff except for assets specified in the following paragraphs. 
Leasehold land is fully amortized over lease period or life of the related plant 
whichever is lower in accordance with the rates and methodology specified in CERC 
Tariff Regulation. Leasehold land acquired on perpetual lease is not amortized. 

Depreciation on spares parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment which are 
capitalized, is provided on straight line method from the date they are available for use 
over the remaining useful life of the related assets, following the rates and 
methodology notified by the CERC. 

Depreciation on following assets is provided based on estimated useful life as per 
technical assessment. 

Particulars Useful life 

a. Computers & Peripherals 3 Years 

b. Servers & Network Components 5 vears 

Residual value of above assets is considered as Nil. 

Mobile phones are charged off in the year of purchase. 

Fixed Assets costing ~ 5,000/- or less, are fully depreciated in the year. of ~cquisition . 

Where the cost of depreciable property, plant and equipment has undergone a change 
due to increase/decrease" in long term monetary items on account of exchange rate 
fluctuation, price adjustment, change in duties , or similar factors, the unamortized 
balance of such asset is depreciated prospectively at the rates and methodology as 
specified by the CERC Tariff Regulations. 

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from Property, Plant and Equipment during the 
year is charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available 
for use/disposed. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation for assets are reviewed 
at each financial year-end and adjusted prospectively, wherever required. 

Intangible Assets 

Cost of software capitalized as intangible asset is amortized over the period of legal 
right-to use or 3 years, whichever is less with Nil residual value. 

Afforestation charges are amortized over thirty five years from the date of capitalization 
of related transmission assets following the rates and methodology notified by Central 
Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) Tariff Regulations. 

Amortisation on additions to/deductions from Intangible Assets during the year is 
charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for 
use/d4sposed . 



•• 

2.6 Borrowing Co!fts 

Borrowing costs dir-ectly attributable to the acquisition .or construction of qualifying 
assets are capitalised (net of income on temporary deployment of funds) as part of the 
cost of such assets till the assets are ready for the intended use. Qualifying assets are 
assets which take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use. 

Other borrowing costs are charged to revenue. 

2.7 Impairment of non-financial assets, other than inventories 

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each 
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment considering 
the provisions of Ind AS 36 'Impairment of Assets'. If any such indication exists, then 
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair 
value less costs to disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that 
cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets 
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the 
cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the "cash-generating unit", or "CGU"). 

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU 
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in 
the statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are 
reduced from the carrying amo.unts of the assets of the CGU . . 

lmpa!rment losses recognized in prior peri9ds are assessed at each reporting 
date for any . indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An 
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to 
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the 
extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no 
impairment loss had been recognized. 

2.8 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and at bank, and deposits held at 
call with banks having a maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisitioo 
that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value. 

2.9 Inventories 

Inventories ar-e valued at lower of the cost, determined on weighted average basis and 
net realizable value. = 

Steel scrap and conductor scrap are valued at estimated realizable value or book 
value, whichever is less. 

Spares which do not meet the recognition criteria as Property, Plant and Equipment, 
including spare parts whose cost is less than ~5.00,000/- are recorded as inventories. 

.· ... . • 
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2.10 ~eases 

i) As a Lessor 

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the 
substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is , or 
contains , a lease if fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific 
asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even 
if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement. 

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operat ing lease. 

a) Finance leases 

A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership of an asset is classified as a finance lease. 

b) Operating leases 

An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease. Leases in which a 
significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the 
lessor are classified as operating leases. 

For operating leases, the asset is capitalized as property, plant and equipment 
and depreciated over its economic life. Rental income from operating lease is 
recognized over the term of the arrangement. 

ii) As a Lessee 

finance lease 

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the company, as lessee has 
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance lease. 
On initial recognition, assets held under finance lease are recorded as 
property, plant and equipment and related liability is recognized under 
borrowings. At inception of the lease, finance leases are recorded at amount 
equal to fair value of leased asset or if lower the present value of minimum 
lease payments. The minimum lease payments made under finance leases 
are apportioned between tfle finance expense and reduction of the finance 
liability. 

The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease:Jerm so as to 
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the 
liabi!-ity. 

Operating leases 

Payments made under operating leases are r.ecognized as an expense over the lease 
term. 

2.11 Financial instruments 

Financial Assets 

Classification 

.. .. . ., . . 
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The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: 

• at amortised cost, 

at fair value through other comprehensive income 

The classification depends on the following: 

• the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and 

• the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset 

Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial 
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs, if any, that 
are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 

Subsequent measurement 

Debt Instruments at Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of 
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal 
and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that 
is subsequently measured at amortised cost is recognised in profit or loss when the 
asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is 
included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. 

Debt Instruments at Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): 
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial 
assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and 
interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). 

Equity investments 

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 'Financial Instruments' are measured at 
fair value. Jhe company may, ori" initial recognition, make an irrevocable election to 
present subsequent changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 
on an instrument by-instrument basis. 

For equity instruments classified as at FVOCI, all fair value changes on the instrument, 
excluding dividends are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts 
from OCI to Profit or Loss, even on sale of investment. 1-'towever, the Company may 
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 

De-recognition of financial assets 

A financial asset is derecognized only when 

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

The company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial 
asset, or 
Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial assets, but 
assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients. 

Impairment of financial assets: 

For trade receivables, the company applies the simplified approach required by Ind 
AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be 
r.ecognised from initial recognition of the receivables. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the 
company determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk~ 
since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significa.ntly, 12-month ECL is 
used to provide for impai.rment loss. However, if credit risk has increased sig~· ntly, 
lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit , uality"-o the 

.. . 
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instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk 
since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance 
based on 12 -month ECL. 

Financial Liabilities 

-Financial liabilities of the Company are contractual obligation to deliver cash or another 
financial asset to another entity or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities 
with another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavorable to the Company. 

The Company's financial liabilities include loans & borrowings, trade and other 
payables. 

Classification, initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the issue of financial liabilities. Financial liabilities are classified 
as subsequently measured at amortized cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking 
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 
integral part of the effective interest rate (EIRl Any difference between the proceeds 
(net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings using the EIR. 

Subsequent measurement 

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss 
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. 

The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

De-recognition of finan!=ial liability 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged 
· or cancelled or expires. When an existing liability is replaced by another from.t.he·same 
!ender on substantialiy different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition 
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the 
carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to 
another party and the consideration- paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or 
liabilities assumed, is recognised in Stateme~ of Profit and Loss as other income or 
finance cost. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are off~et and the net amount is reported in the 
Balance Sheet if there is a currently enf'Orceable legal right to offset the recognised 
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and 
settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

~--u...:12 Foreign Currency Translation 
~~ 

~ ;s'.-\\SSJo.y l. , ) Functional and presentation currency 
Ir- ~~ (1; 

t:::,; ;;: ff~t;~ ·~ s included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the 
· · -· ~ cu rency of the primary .economic environment in which the Company operates ('the 
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,.. "' •. T £ ctional currency') . The financial statements are pr~sented in Indian Rupees 
,, ~~""""" f! t{"f"<\'.~:,... -( upees or~). which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. 
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* (b) Transactions and balances 
. . . 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at 
prevailing on the date of the transaction. Foreign currency 
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translated with reference to the rates of exchange ruling on the date of the Balance 
Sheet. Non-Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are reported at the 
exchange rate ruling on the date of initial recognition of the non-monetary prepayment 
asset or deferred income liability, or the date that related item is recognized in the 
financial statements, whichever is earlier. In case the transaction is recognized in 
stages, then transaction date is established for each stage. 

Foreign exchange gains and losses (other than related to foreign currency loans 
outstanding) are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis within 
other gains/(losses). 

The Company has availed the exemption available in Ind AS 101 , to continue the 
policy adopted for accounting for exchange differences arising from translation of 
long-term foreign currency monetary ~abilities outstanding as on March 31, 2016. 

Exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowin~ to the extent regarded 
as an adjustment to interest costs are treated as borrowing cost. Other exchange 
differences are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

2.13 Income Tax 

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income. In this case the tax is 
also recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. 

Curre.nt income tax 

The Current Tax is based on taxabl~ profit for the year under the t~x-laws 
enacted or subsequ~ntly enacted at the end of the reporting perjod in the 
countries where the company and its subsidiaries and joint ventures operate -
and generate taxable income. 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities in the company's financial statements and the corresponding tax 
bases used in the computation of taxable profit and is accounted for using the Balance 
Sheet method. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible 
temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is 
probable that future taxable prQ_fits will be available against which those deductible 
temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised. The 
carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be 
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. 

Deferfed tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to 
apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax 

2.14 Revenue Recognition and Other lncome 
~ ~ 

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract ~wit~ a 
. customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. lf.e Compa y 

10· * 
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recognizes revenue when it transfers control over a product or service to a customer. 
The Company has applied Ind AS 115 using the cumulative effect method and 
therefore the comparative information has not been restated and continues to be 
reported under Ind AS 18 and Ind AS 11 . 

In the comparative period, revenue was measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable . Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns, trade 
allowances, rebates, GST and value added taxes. 

Significant Financing Component 

Where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the 
customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year, the Company assesses the 
effects of significant financing component in the~ contract. As a consequence, the 
Company makes adjustment in the transaction prices for the effects of t ime value of 
money. No such adjustment has been made for the comparative period. 

2.14.1 Revenue from Oper.ations 
Transmission Income is accounted for based on orders issued by CERC u/s 63 of 
Electricity Act 2003 for adoption of transmission charges. 

The Transmission system incentive I disincentive is accounted for based on 
certification of availability by the respective Regional Power Committees and in 
accordance with the Transmission Service Agreement (TSA) entered between ·the 
Transmission Ser:vice Provider and long ~erm Transmission Customers. 

2.14.2 Other Income 

Interest income is recognized, when no significant uncertainty as to measurability or 
collectability exists, on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount 
outstanding and the applicable interest rate , using the effective interest rate method 
(EIR). 

Surcharge recoverable from trade receivables, liquidated damages, warranty claims 
and interest on advances to suppliers are recognized when no significant uncertainty 
as to measurability aAd collectability exists. · 

Scrap other than steel scrap & conductor scrap are accounted for as and when sold. 

Dividend income is recognized when right to receive payment is established. 

Insurance claims for loss of profit are accounted for in the · year of acceptance. 
Other insurance claims are accounted for based on certainty of realization. 

Revenue from rentals and operating leases is recognized on an accrual basis in 
accor<:lance with the.substance of the relevant agreement. 

2.15 Dividends 

.. . 

Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period 
in which the dividends are approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend paid is 
recognised on approval by Board of Directors. Dividend payable and corresponding tax 
on dividend distribution is recognised directly in equity. 

. ·---• ' fl • 
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2.16 Provisions and Contingencies 

a) Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of 
money is material, provisions are discounted. Unwinding of the discount is recognised 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each 
Balance Sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 

b) Contingencies 

Conting~nt liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the management I 
independent experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are 
adjusted to reflect the current management estimate. 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past 
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non­
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of 
.the amount cannot be made. Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the 
Notes to the Financial Statements 33. Contingent assets are not recognised. · 

2.17 Share capital and Other Equity 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. 

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity 
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. 

Self-insurance reserve is created @ 0.12% p.a. on Gross Block of Property, Plant and 
Equipment except assets covered under insurance as at the end of the year by 
appropriation of current year profit to mitigate future losses from un-insured risks and 
for taking care of contingencies in future by procurement of towers and other 
transmission line materials including strengthening of towers and equipment of AC 
substation. The Reserve created as above is shown as "Self Insurance Reserve" 
under 'Other Equity'. 

Basic earnings per share is computed using the net profiter JgssfoJ the year 
attributable to the shareholders and weighted average number of snares outstanding ,,.,...-- . 
during the year . 

. . . . 



Diluted earnings per share is computed using the net profit or loss for the year 
attributable to the shareholders and weighted average number of equity and potential 
equity shares outstanding during the year, except where the result would be anti­
dilutive. 
Additionally, basic and diluted earnings per share are computed using the earnings 
amounts excluding the movements in Regulatory Deferral Account Balances. 

2.20 Cash Flow Statement 

Cash flow statement is prepared as per indirect method prescribed in the Ind AS 7 
'Statement of Cash Flows '. 

3. Critical Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which 
may significantly vary from the actual results. Management also needs to exercise 
judgment while applying t(le company's accounting policies. 

The areas involving critical estimates or judgments 

a) . Revenue Recognition: 
Transmission income is accounted for based on orders issued by the CERC under 
section 63 of Electricity Act for adoption of transmission charges. Transmission income 
in respect of additional capital expenditure incurred after the date of commercial 
operation is accounted for based on expenditure incurred on year to year basis as per 
CERC tariff regulations 

b). Useful life of property, plant and equipment 

i:he ~stimated useful life of property, plant and equipment is based on a number _of­
factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other 
economic factors (such as the stability of the industry and known technological -
advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected 
future cash flows from the asset. 

The Company reviewes at the end of each reporting date the useful plant and 
equipment, other than the assets of transmission business which are governed by 
CERC Regulations, and are adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

-c). Provisions and contingencies 

·. 

The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been 
made in accordance with Ind AS 37, 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 
Assets'. The evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events has required best 
judgment by management regarding the probability of exposure to potential loss. 
Should .circumstances change following unforeseeable developments, this likelihood 
could alter. 

Estimates and judgments are .periodically evaluated. They are based on historical 
experience and other factors , including expectations of future events that may have a 
financial impact on the company and that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. 

. . . ---- • • 



25. Party Balances and Confirmations 

Balances of some parties like contractors, suppliers and service providers are subject to 
confirmation and reconciliation. 

26. Foreign Currency Exposure 

Not hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise 

Particulars 
Amount in Foreign Currency ~in Lakh 

31.03.2019 31.03.2018 31.03.2019 31.03.2018 

Trade USO 482,570 482,570 336.69 315.31 
Payables/deposits and 
retention money 

Amount of contracts USO NIL NIL NIL NIL -
remaining to be 
executed 

27. Auditors Remuneration 
''in Lakh) 

s. 
Particulars 

FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18 
No. 
1 Statutory Audit Fees 2.30 - 1.69 -
2 Tax Audit Fees 0.24 0.24 
3 Out of pocket Expenses - :_ 0.54 . .. 0.76 

Total 3.08 2.69 

28. Other Disclosures 

a. Employee Benefits 

The Company does not have any permanent employees. The personnel working 
for the company are from holding company and are working on time share basis 
and deputation in terms of the consultancy agreement dated 11-Sep-2012 & 
amendment thereon dt. 08-Dec-2014. The employee cost (including retirement 
benefits such as Gratuity, Leave encashment, post-retirement benefits etc.) in 

= respect of personnel working for the company are paid by holding company and 
- holding company is raising the invoice to the Subsidiary company towards 
~~ &o.""- Consultancy charges for manpower as per the agreement. Consultancy charges of 

~ ;~~.\SSION~~~) ~ 5,328.40 Lakhs is provided in the Accounts upto 31-Mar-2019 since inception. 
/;;£"~ ~1~ -t~\~ Since there are no employees in the company, the obligation as per Ind AS-19 

~ ~-':,_~ ~ / does not arise. Accordingly, no provision is considered necessary for any 
,.....~ "'"~~~~ ,~jt -r~tirement benefit like gratuity, leave salary, pension etc., in the books of the 

·'?:1,100 * i \)"' 'jYJ company. 

PNMT[: had initially entered into a consultancy agreement dated 30-Jun-2017 with 
POWERGRID for post operative activities including operation rn · enance of 
765 kV Nagapattinam-Salem DIC Transmission line. Furtheri, · '! s ~ mentary 

~ . 
. ~ 

B ngalo e t, 
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agreement dt. 15-Feb-2019, the POWERGRID O&M consultancy services have 
been extended to 765 kV Salem-Madhugiri SIC Transmission line w.e.f. 26-Jan-
2019. O&M Consultancy charges of ~ 360.60 Lakhs is provided in the accounts 
upto 31-Mar-2019 since inception. 

b. Leases 

Operating Lease: The Company has no majoroperating leases except in respect 
of premises for office which isrenewable in nature based on mutually agreed 
terms. 

Finance Lease: The Company has no finance leases. 

c. Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises 

The information required to be disclosed under Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been 
determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of 
information available with the company. There are no over dues to parties on 
account of principal amount and I or interest and accordingly no additional 
disclosures have been made. 

d. Borrowing Cost 

The borrowing cost capitalized during the year is~ 2465.21 Lakhs (Previous Year~ 
1950.20 Lakhs) in the respective carrying amount of Prope~y plant and equipment/ 
Capital Work in Progress (CWIP) as per Ind AS 23 ' Borrowig Cost". 

29. (i) Fair value Measurements 

Financial 
instruments by 

category 
Financial Assets 
Cash & Cash 
Equivalents 
Other Financial 
Assets 
Total financial 

31 March 2019 

FVOCI 
Amortised 

cost 

73.51 

121 .72 

195.23 

112,453.73 
0.93 

8,962.18 

121,416.84 

31 March 2018 

FVOCI 
Amortised 

cost 

3.22 

1.90 

5.12 

96,207.38 
1.40 

10,851.44 

107,060.22 

~in Lakh 

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in ~termining the fair values of the financial instruments that 

measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. 

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, theCompany has cl 
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its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under ~he accounting standard . 
An Explanation of each level follows underneath the table. 

Assets and liabilities which Notes Level 1 Level 2 
are measured at amortised 
cost for which fair values 
are disclosed 
At 31 March 2019 
Financial Assets 

Total Financial Assets 
Financial Liabilities 
Borrowings - - 110,604.71 

~ 

Total financial liabilities - - 110,604.71 -

Assets and liabilities which Notes Level1 Level 2 
are measured at amortised 
cost for which fair values are 
disclosed 
At 31 March2018 
Financial Assets 

Total Financial Assets 
Financial Liabilities 
Borrowings 95,687.50 

Total financial liabilities 95,687.50 

(~in Lakh) 
Levell Total 

- 110,604.71 

- 110,604.71 

(~in Lakh) 
Levell Total 

- 95,687.50 

- 95,687.50 

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This 
includes listed equity113(91 )(a) instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted 
price. The fair value of all equity instruments (including bonds) which are traded in the stock 
exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. 

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for 
example, traded bonds, over-the- counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques 
which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity­
specific estimates. If all significant inputs r.equired to fair value an instrument are observable, 
the instrument is included in level 2. 

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the 
instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent 
consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3. There are no transfers between 
levels 1 and 2 during the year. The company's policy is to recognise transfers into and 
transfers out of faii value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period . 

' . . . ---- •• .· . . _ .... 
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(iii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortized cost 
({in Lakh) 

31 March 2019 31 March 2018 
Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value 
Amount Amount 

Financial Assets - - - -

Total Financial - - - -
Assets 
Financial Liabilities 
Borrowings 112,453.73 110,604.71 96,207.38 95,687.50 

Total financial 
liabilities 112,453.73 110,604.71 96,207.38 95,687.50 -

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents, other current 
financial Assets and other current financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values, due 
to their short-term nature. -

The fai r values of non-current borrowings are based on discounted cash flows using 
a current borrowing rate. They are · classified as level 2 fair values in the fair value 
hierarchy since significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable. 

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the 
fa ir values. 

30. Capital and other commitments 

(~in Lakh) 

Particulars 
As at March 

As at March 31,2018 
31,2019 

Estimated amount of contracts 
remaining to be ex~cuted on 

27.35 529.99 
capital account and not provided 
for (net of advances) 

Company has approved an estimate of ~37,094 .00 Lakhs towards Tree/Crop!Tower/Land 
compensation, out of which an amount of~ 32,161.81 Lakhs is spent till 31 51 Mar2019. 

31. Contingent Liabilities 
(~in Lakh 

31_ March, 2019 31 March, 
2018 

2,703.93 

' -.. ----- . : e .· 
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32. Earnings Per share 
(in ~) 

(a) Basic and Diluted earnings per share 
attributable to the equity holders of the company- 31 March 2019 31 March, 2018 

Basic Earning Per Share (2.70) (4.02) 

Diluted Earning Per Share (2.70) (4.02) 

(~in Lakh) 
(b) Reconciliation of earnings used in calculating 

31 March 2019 31 March,2019 earnings per share 
Earnings attributable to the equity holders of the (6355.92) (8314.08) 
company 

- 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 (c)Weighted average number of shares used as the 
Number of Number of denominator 

shares shares 
Weighted average number of equity shares used as 
the denominator in calculating basic earnings per 235,534,247 206, 758, 904 
share 
Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per 
share: 
Total Weighted average number of equity shares used 
as the denominator in calculating basic earnings per 235,534,247 206, 758,904 
share 

33. Related party Transactions 

(a) Holding Company 

Proportion of Ownership 
interest 

Name of Entity Place of 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18 
Business/Country of 
incorporation/Relationshi 
p 

Power Grid Corporation of India-Holding Company 
India Limited 

(b) Subsidiaries of Holding Company 

Name of entity 

---- . •• 

Place.of 
business/country 
of incor oration 

India 

India 

India 

India 

.· 

100% 100% 

Proportion of Ownership 
Interest 

31 5 March, 31 5 Mar~h, 
2019 2018 

N.A N.A 

N.A N.A 

N.A N.A 

'-.. . · . · ......... .. 
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Limited 0 

Powergrid Warora Transmission India N.A N.A 
Limited 
Powerqrid Parli Transmission Limited looia N.A N.A 
Powergrid Southern lnterconnector India N.A N.A 
Transmission Limited 
Powergrid Vemagiri Transmission India N.A N.A 
Limited 
Powergrid Medinipur Jeerat India N.A N.A 
Transmission Limited 
Powergrid Mithilanchal Transmission India N.A N.A 
Limited (erstwhile ERSS XXI 
Transmission Limited) 
Powergrid Varanasi Transmission India N.A N.A 
System Limited(erstwhile WR-NR 
Power Transmission Limited) 
Powergrid Jawaharpu...!:_f irozabad India N.A N.A 
Transmission Limited (erstwhile 
Jawaharpur Firozabad 
Transmission Limited )# 

#100% equity in Powergrid Jawaharpur Firozabad Transmission Limited acquired from 
REC Transmission Projects Limited on 21 51 December, 2018. 

(c) Joint Ventures of Holding Company 

Proportion of 
Owners hi Interest' 

Name of e_~tity Place of business/ 31 5 31 5 March, 
country of March, 2018 

incor oration 2019 
Powerlinks Transmission Limited India NA NA 
Torrent Power Grid Limited India NA NA 
JaypeePowergrid Limited India NA NA 
ParbatiKoldam Transmission Company India NA NA Limited 
Teestavalley Power Transmission 
Limited# 

India NA NA 
North East Transmission Company India NA NA Limited 
National High Power Test Laboratory India NA NA Private Limited 
Bihar Grid Company Limited India NA NA 
KalingaVfdyutPrasaran Nigam Private India NA NA Limited## 

India NA . NA 
India NA NA 
Nepal NA NA 

- .. .· .. . . --··· 
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Consequently, the holding of POWER.GRID increased to 28.23% as on 31/03/2019 
against 2.6% provided in shareholding agreement. 
## POWERGRID's Board of Directors in its meeting held on 16th august 2017 accorded 
approval for initiating proceeding for winding up/removal of the name of Kalinga Vidyut 
Prasaran Nigam Private Ltd under fast track exit mode of Registrar of Companies 
(ROC). 
### POWERGRID's Board of Directors in its meeting held on 01-May-2018 accorded in 
principle approval for winding up/dissolution of RINL Powergrid TL T Private Limited . 

(d) Key Managerial Personnel 

Name 
Designation Date of Date of 

Appointment Resignation 
Smt. Seema Gupta Chairperson & 12.05.2017 Continuing 

Director W:B.f 
29.01 .20t9 

Shri Ravi P. Singh Chairman & Director 29.11 .2012 22.01 .2019 
Shr+Anil Jain Director 07.05.2018 Continuing 
Shri Pramod Kumar Director 11 .05.2018 Continuing 
Shri S. Ravi Director 12.11.2018 Continuing 
Shri S. Vaithilingam Director 04.03.2015 30.04.2018 
Shri D.K.Valecha Director 04.03.2015 30.04.2018 
Shri R.K. Singh Director 09.12.2015 04.06.2018 
Shri S Ravindar Kumar CEO 02.09.2016 18.01.2019 
Shri P.C. Garg CEO 18.01.2019 Continuing 
Shri AK. Das CFO 26.07.2016 Continuing 
Shri Mrinal Shrivastava Co. Secy. 1.8.05.2015 . Continuing 

There is no outstanding balance·-payable. or receivable from any managerial personnel as at 
· the beginning or at the end of the year. 

( e ) Directors, CEO, CFO and Company Secretary's 
compensatton 

The above personnel working for the company are from holding company and are working on 
time share basis and deputation. The employee cost (including retirement benefits such as 
Gratuity, Leave encashment, post-retirement benefits etc.) in respect of personnel working for 
the company are paid by holding company and nolding company is raising the invoice to the 
Subsidiary company towards Consultancy charges for manpower as per the agreement dt. 11-
Sep-2012 & amendment thereon dt. 08-Dec-2014. Since there are no employees in the 
company, the obligation as per Ind AS -19 does not arise. Accordingly, no provision is 
considered necessary for any retirement benefit like gratuity, leave salary, pension etc., in the 
books of the <;ompany. 

(f) Transactions with related parties 

The following transactions occurred with related parties: 
~in Lakh 

31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018 

Taxes 738.78 777.18 
8,031.64 7, 148.09 
8,770.42 7,925.27 

(g) Outstanding balances arising from sales/purchases o 

• c 
... 
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The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to 
transactions with related parties: 

(~ i n Lakh) 
Particulars 31 March, 31 March, 

2019 2018 
Other pavables ( ExpensesConsultancv Fee/ Interest) 
Holding Com12any - -

Power Grid Corporation of India Ltd. 6,737.68 8,121 .15 
Total payables to related parties 6,737.68 8,121 .15 

(h) Loans to/from related parties 

(~inLakh ) 

Loans from Holding Company 31 March, 31 March, 
2019 2018 

Power Grid Corooration of India Ltd. 108,590.56 92,429.81 
Total 108,590.56 92,429.81 

(i) Interest Payable on Loan 

(~in Lakh) 
Particulars 31 March, 31 March, 2018 

2019 
Holdina 
Power Grid Corporation of India Ltd. 3,863.17 3,777.57 
Total 3,863.17 3,777.57 

34. Capital management 

a) Risk Management 
The company's objectives when managing capital are to maximize the shareholder 

value; 
safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern ; 
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. 

For the purpose of the company's capital management, equity capital includes issued equity 
capital , share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the 
company. The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of 
changes in economic conditions, regulatory framework and requirements of financial 
covenants with lenders. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust 
the dividend payment to shareholders, regulate investments in new projects, return capital to 
shareholders or issue new shares. The company monitors the debt equity ratio as the 
company policy is to maintain a 80:20. No changes were made in the objectives, pol icies or 
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018. 

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 
108,590.56 92,429.81 

26,400.00 21 ,200.00 
80:20 



.. 

b) Dividends 0 

No dividend has been declared by the company in the previous year and current year. 

35. Segment Information 

Business Segment 

The Board of Directors is the company's Chief operating decision maker who monitors the 
operating results of its business segments separately for the purpose of making decisions 
about resource allocation and performance assessment. One reportable segments have 
been identified on the basis of producUservices. The company has a single reportable 
segment i.e., Power transmission network for transmission system. 
The operations of the company are mainly carried out within the country and therefore 
there is no reportable geographical segment. 

36. Financial Risk Management 

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings denominated in 
Indian rupees, trade payables and other payables. The main purpose of these financial 
liabilities is to finance the Company's capital investments and operations. 
The Company's principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, and cash and 
cash equivalents that are generated from its operations. 
The Company's activities expose it to the following financial risks, namely, 

a) Credit risk, 
b) Liquidity risk, 
c) Market risk. 

This note presents information regarding the company's exposure, objectives, policies and 
processes for measuring and managing these risks. 
The management of financial risks by the Company is summarized below:-

A) Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument _ 
or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from 
its operating activities on account of trade receivables. 
A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments 
within 3 years of when they fall due. This definition of default is determined considering the 
business environment in which the Company operates and other macro-economic factors. 
Assets are written-0ff when there is no reas·onable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor 
declaring bankruptcy or failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company. Where loans 
or receivables have been written off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement 
activity -to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

(i) Trade Receivables 

.. . . · ... · . 



(ii)Othef Financial Assets (excluding trade receivables) 

• Cash .and cash equivalents 
The Company held cash and cash equivalents of ~73 . 51 Lakhs(Previous year: ~3.22 
Lakhs) . The cash and cash equivalents are held with public sector banks and high 
rated private sector banks and do not have any significant credit risk . 

Exposure to credit risk 
(~in Lakh) 

31st 31st March, Particulars March, 2019 
2018 

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured 
using 12 months Expected Credit Losses (ECL) 
Cash and cash equivalents 73.51 3.22 
Other current financial assets 121 .72 F90 
Total 195.23 5.12 
Financial assets for Which loss allowance is measured 
using Life time Expected Credit Losses (ECL) - -
Trade receivables 860.36 -

o Provision for expected credit losses 

. · 

(a) Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 month expected credit 
losses ' · · 

The Company has assets where the 'counter- parties have sufficient capacity to meet the 
obligations and where the risk of default is very low. At Initial recognition, financial assets . 
(excluding trade receivables) are considered as having negligible credit risk and the risk has._ 
not increased from initial recognition . Therefore expected credit loss provision is not required. 

{b) Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using life time expected credit losses 
The Company has customers most of whom are state government utilities with capacity to 
meet the obligations and therefore the risk of default is negligible. Further, management 
believes that the unimpaired amounts that are 30 days past due date are still cellectible in full, 
based on the payment security mechanism in place and historical payment betlavior. 
Considering the above factors and the prevalent regulations, the trade receivables continue to 
have a negligible credit risk on initial recognition and thereafter on each reportir:!g date. 

{c) Ageing Analysis of Trade Receivables 

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables is below: 

Not Due 0-30 31-60 61-90 91-120 More than 120 Total 

860.36 860.36 

{d)Reconciliation of lmpairement loss provisions 

.. . . . . . ., . . 
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The movement in the allowance for impairement in respect of financial assets during the year was 
as follows: 

(~ i n Lakh) 
Purticuler Trade Receivable lnvestmentsn Loans Advances Unbilled Total 

Debtors 

Balance as at 
1st Apr 2017 - - - - 1891.99 1891.99 

lmpairement loss 
RecoQnized - - - - - -
Amount written off - - - - - -

Balance as at 
31 Mar 2018 - - - - 1891 .99 1891.99 

lmpairement loss 
Recognized - - - -
Amount written off 

Balance as at 
31 Mar 2019 - - - - 1891 .99 1891.99 

Based on historic default rates, the Group believes that, apart from the above, no impairment 
· allowance is necessary in respect of any other assets as the amounts are insignificant. 

B) _ Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities -~ma -
the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet 
obligations when due. The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity 
planning tool. The Company has access to a variety of sources of funding such as commercial 
paper, bank loans, bonds and eXternal commercial borrowings and retains flexibil ity in funding 
by maintaining availability under committed credit lines. 

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position comprising the 
undrawn borrowing facilities below and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected 
cash flows. · 

The Company depends on both internal and external sources of liquiaity to provide working 
capital and to fund capital expenditure. 

Maturities of financial liabilities 

~in Lakh 
Within a Between 1-5 Beyond 5 Total 

ear ears ears 

interes 14, 153.97 74,247.44 73,322.15 1,61 ,723.56 

8,963.11 

23, 117.08 74,247.44 

.. . .. .. ., . . 
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31 51 March 2018 
Borrowings (including interes1 7,668.99 69 ,218.60 64,512.09 1,41 ,399.68 
outflows) 
Other Current financial liabilities 10,852.84 - - 10,852.84 
Total 18,521 .83 69,218.60 •64,512.09 1,52,252.52 

C) Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in market prices . Market risk comprises three types of risk: 
i. Currency risk 
ii. Interest rate risk 

i) Currency risk 

As on Reporting date the Company does not have any exposure to currency risk in respect ~of 
foreign currency denominated loans and borrowings.The Ex-posure to foreign currency for 
prequirement of goods and services is given in Note 26. 

ii) Interest rate risk 

The Company is not exposed to any interest rate risk arising from long term borrowings since 
all the borrowings are with fixed interest rates. 

37. Income Tax expense 

This note provides an analysis of the company's income tax expense, and how the tax 
expense is affected by non-assessable and non-deductible items. It also exprains­
significant estimates made in relation to The Company's tax positions. 

(a) Income tax expense 

Particulars 
(a) Income tax expense 
Current Tax 

Current tax on profits for the year 
Adjustment for Earlier years 

Total current tax expense 

Deferred tax exoense 
Origination and· reversal of temporary 
differences 
Previously unrecognised tax credit 
recognised as Deferred Tax Asset this 
year 
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) 
Income tax expense 

/ ~ 

.. 

l'i Y/ 9" ~ 

.. . 
. " .. .. . 

(~in Lakh) 
31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018 

' 
- -
- -

- -
-- ---

- -

(2,611 .21) (3,191.30) 

-:: 

(2,611.21) (3,191.30) 
(2,611.21) (3,191.30) 

. . 



(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax 
rate : 

({in Lakh) 
Particulars 31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018 
Profit before income tax expense (8,967.13) (11 ,505.38) 
includinq movement in requlatory 
Tax at the Indian tax rate of NIL - -
Tax effect of: 

Non Deductible tax items 

Tax exempt income - -

Deferred Assets for Deferred - -
Tax tiabilitv Q 

Previous Years tax liability - -

Unabsorbed tax losses - -

Deferred Tax expense/(income) (2,611.21) (3, 191 .30) 

Minimum alternate tax adjustments - -

Income Tax expenses (2,611.21) (3, 191.30) 

38. Recent Accounting Pronouncements; 

Ind AS 116 was notified. by Ministry of Corporate Af(airs on 30 March 20f9 ,aod it is 
applic~ble f?r annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. 

Ind AS 116 will affect primarily the accounting by lessees and will r~sult in the 
recognition of almost all leases on balance sheet. The standard removes the current 
distinction between operating and finance leases and requires recognition of an asset 
(the right-of--use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals for virtually all 
lease contracts. An optional exemption exists for short-term and low-value leases. The 
accounting by lessors will not significantly change. 

The Company is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and the effect on 
financial statements. 

Amendments to Ind AS 19, 'Employee Benefits' 

The amendments to Ind AS 19 clarify the accounting for defined benefit plan 
amendments, curtailments and settlements:--They confirm that entities ·must : 

• Catculate the current service cost and net j nterest for the remainder of the reporting 
period after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement by using the updated 
assumptions from the date of the change; 

• Any reduction in a surplus should be recognised immediately in profit or loss either as 
part-Of past service cost, or as a gain or loss on settlement. In other words, a reduction 
in a surplus must be recognised in profit or loss even if that surplus was not previously 
recognised becaus . 0f tbe impact of the asset ceiling ; and 

• Separately reco i ~ f-l:Y.SI t'i9 es in the asset ceiling through other comprehensive 
income. ·s.'.\~:iION ~ 

. ·-

t ~">;-· ,...7f=,._ <'(~ 
£ ~-~ ~ 

~.\ :;.~ i1Jl 
~ ·~oc1 * i'll\)"' 'ijf'J 

* .. . 
. , . . ' . 



Less : Impairment/reversal durinq the period - 1891 .99 
Add: Translation gain/(loss) - -
Balance at the end 121 .72 -

The entity determines transaction price based on expected value method considering 
its past .experiences ef refunds or significant reversals in amount of revenue. In 
estimating significant fjnancing component, management considers the financing 
element inbuilt in the transaction price based on imputed rate of return. Reconciliation 
of Contracted Price vis-a-vis revenue recognized in profit or loss statement is as 
follows-

(~in Lakh) 
Year ended Year ended March 
Marci"q 31, 2019 31, 2018 

Contracted price 1591 .05 Nil 
Add/ (Less)- Discounts/ rebates provided to 

6.91 Nil customer -

Add/ (Less)- Performance bonus 0.56 Nil 
Add/ (Less)- Adjustment for significant 

Nil financinq component 
-

Add/ (Less)- Other adjustments -
Revenue recognized in profit or loss 1584.70 Nil 
statement 

41. a) Figures. have been rounded off to nearest rupees in lakhs up to two decimal. 
· b) Previous year figures have been regrouped I rearranged wherever consider~d . 

,_-necessary. 

As per our report of even date-= For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

For '11tallga8...'11tallga 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. SS 

~<!' 

Place: Gur.gaon 
Date: 20-May-2019 

.. . 
. ' . . 

~ ... 
~ 

= 

~ 
(Seema Gupta) 
Chairperson 
DIN :06636330 

.. 

( amod Kumar) 
Di c:;tor 
DIN : 08132119 

i al t Shrivastav 
ompany 
ecretary 

- . -------- . 
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POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LTD 
(A Fully Owned Subsidiary of Powergrid Corporation of India Ltd., A Government of India Enterprise) 

~ ~ ~ J:rOTT(;ft - II ~ ~lf'i~ . ~.if .aft . Cfil~f(>t~ ~ "tffil, fti•1'11~Cfi'1&tfl 
~('l~Cfil ~. ~ - 560 064. 

Southern Region Transmission System - II AHO., Near RTO Office, Singanayakanahalli 
Yelahanka Hobli , Bangalore - 560 064. Ph: 080 - 2309 3768 

Ref . : PN MTL/F&A/2018-19/ Dt. 20th May 2019 

CERTIFICATE 

This is to certify that, financial results of M/s Powergrid NM 

Transmission Limited for the financial year ended 31st March 2019 

does not contain any false or misleading statement or figure and do 

not omit any material fact which may make the statement or figures 

cont ained therein misleading. 

~ 
(Seema Gupta) 
Chairperson 

(A.K. Das) 
CFO 

~ ~ : ift-9, ~ $fil<::i:fl1t1 ~. Cfii!ql~~I mitf, Of{ W - 110 016. ~ : 011 -26560112. ~ : 011-26601081 

Registered Office : 8-9, Qutab Institutional Area . Katwaria Sarai, New Delhi - 110 016. Phone : 011-26560112. Fax : 011-26601081 . Grams : NATGRID 

CIN· U40106DL2011G01219542 



To, 

The Deputy Director 

Indian Audit & Accounts Department 
Offi ce of The Principal Director Of Commerce .Audit & 

Ex- Official Member, Audit Board, 

A.G'S Office Complex, Saifabad, 

Hyderabad-500 004. 

Dear Sir, 

111.allg.a 8. 1kallg.a 
Chartered Accountants 

We have completed the statutory audit of M/s. POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED (CIN 
U40106DL2011GOI219542) for the financial year ended on 31st March 2019. 

We are pleased to submit herewith the following: 

1. Audited Financial Statements and Notes on accounts, 

2. Statutory Audit Report with Annexures, 

3. Directions/ Sub- Directions issued by the C&AG of India under sec.143(5) of the 

Companies Act,2013 

Thanking You, 

Yours faithfully 

For 1f.tallfla 8- 11tallfla 

M.No. 218355 
Date: 20th May, 2019 

Place: Gurgaon 

Head Office : No. 29/2., Parijatha Complex, First Floor, Race Course Road, Bangalore - 560 001 
Mysuru Branch : No. 73, 3rd Main, Vadavgiri, Mysuru - 570 020 

Davangere Branch : No. 25, Akkamahadevi Samaj Complex, 3rd Main, 6th Cross, P J Extension, Davangere - 577002 
E-mail : mallyaandmallya@gmail.com Website : www.mallyamallya .com 



111.a.llg.a. 8.. 111.a.llg.a. 
Chartered Accountants 

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE 

We have conducted the audit of accounts of M/s. Power Grid NM Transmission Limited 
(CIN U40106DL2011GOI219542) for the year ended 315 t March 2019 in accordance with · 
the directions/ sub- directions issued by the C& AG of India under sec.143(5) of the 
Companies Act,2013 and certify that we have complied with all the direction/ sub­
directions issued to us. 

For 1ka14J-a. 8.. 1#1allfla 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm No: 001955S 

rash an th 

Partner 

M.No. 218355 

Date: 20th May, 2019 

Place: Gurgaon 

Head Office : No. 29/2, Parijatha Complex, First Floor, Race Course Road, Bangalore - 560 001 
Mysuru Branch : No. 73, 3rd Main, Vadavgiri, Mysuru • 570 020 

Davangere Branch : No. 25, Akkamahadevi Samaj Complex, 3rd Main, 6th Cross, P J Extension, Davangere - 577002 
E-mail : mallyaandmallya@gmail.com Website : www.mallyamallya.com 



\ 

(:\ """' ~ -- \ x 
. nt9 1 F !st . -11~ 

111.ally.a 8.. 111..ally.a 
Chartered Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

TO, 

THE MEMBERS OF 

POWER GRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION 
LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019, the 
Statement of the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity, the Cash Flow 
Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements including a 

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

.... <f .;: 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given p-~-;.. 
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the informatiow;eq~~the Act in them ~ n 1 ~ 
so required and give a true and fair view in con£orkt>P wit:h.A.the accounting princi 

0~ 
generally accepted in India of state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2019, Los ,~/',"'e~---'" 
Changes in Equity and its cashflows for the year ended on that date. ··-·-··- ~ 

Basis for Opinion 

; 

j 

l 
~ 
! 

::~~:~:~~~;o:; ·~u:i~~:;:~i::~~~~~:-~~,~~:n~~~;~o~~~~~:~~~:l:~:!e::!':~::· ---- - - - · ·· -1 
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the j 
Financial ·Statements · section of· our· report. w ·e· areindependent ··of · the· Company· in !,,· 

accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ~ 

together with the ethical· requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial j 
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled I: 

our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of 

Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to j. 

provide a basis for our opinion. l 
. . ... . . ... ..... ... ·-···· ···· .. ·n 

Key Audit Matters 
We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our re 

j ,, 

l 
:1 

~ 
J 
1 

. -· --··-------.. ----------·----·-------.. --------·---------------------·---·--------------·-----------·-----·---·-·----·---------·-------.. ------------------------------------- ·----------------------1 
1 
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.. 

Responsibility of Managements and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters in section 134(5) of the Ac v~ ... 8. ).-,.~ 
\;'~""<' 

with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view / - \ ,..~ 
the fjpandal position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordan an 

· 1 J.ND AG~ · · 1 11 d . I d' . 1 d' th A . -::> w1l 1_
1 
.. tn.e accounting pnnc1p es genera y accepte m n ia, me u mg e ccountml!C' .. ,,,""'-'....,....~ 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting the frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal financial control, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to 
do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

I Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from rnateriar miSstatement, whether d.~e to fraud or .error; a.nd· to issue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016, issued by the Central 
Government of India in term of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies 
Act,2013, we give in the 'Annexure - A' a statement on the matters specified in the \It .... d'. ~ 

.. -· ---·------· para-graphs3 aria4-oflneOraer~-t6--ffi.eextenf applicab1e.- - --·-·---·-··-·-··------············--···--· *c-"- ··-··-···- -~~ 
,... ;. 
2-i Bangalore ~ . 
~ ~ ; 
1: :-,.'l> 
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2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 

of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity 

and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 8. )/, 

books of account ?"'~"" ~~,.. 
IND AS, 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with~ the Accoun 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, rec-id :with I~ule 7 ~f the Compani~~ir----~­
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

e) As the Government Companies have been exempted from applicability of the 

provision of section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013, reporting on disqualification 
of Directors not required. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of 

the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 

Report in 'Annexure - B' 

g) With respect to the other matters included in the Auditor' s Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014, in our opinion and to our 

. . -- f 

best of our informa:tion: and-a:ccording-to-fue -explanations given to-u:s:-· · - ·· -- -- -- -- ---- -- -- ··· - -- · · --

i. The company disclosed the impact of pending litigations on the Financial 
position in its financial -statements of the Company-Refer Note 31 to the ··· 
financial statements 

u. The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses; 

iii. There has been no Delay in Transferring amounts, required to be transferred, 
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

--·-·--·--··------- ---·---·---- ------·-----·-·····---·--- -·---·------------------ --····----------·--·----------------·-·".""'" 
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3. In terms of Section 143 (5) of the Companies Act 2013, we give in the "Annexure C" 
statement on the directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India. 

For Jkallya 8.. Jkallya, 

Chartered Accountants 
. No.0019555 

Partn 

Membership No: 218355 

Place: Gurgaon 
Date: 201h May 2019 
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s. 
No. 
(i) 

I 

I 

(ii) 

l.,,_ 
(iii) 

ANNEXURE 'A' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' 
section of our report to the Members of Power grid NM Transmission Limited of even date) 

Particulars Auditors Remark 

(a) whether the company is maintaining The Company has maintained proper records 
proper records showing full particulars, showing full particulars, including quantitative 
including quantitative details and situation details and situation of fixed assets. 
of fixed assets; 

b) whether these fixed assets have been The Company has a program of verification to 

physically verified by the management a t cover all the items of fixed assets in a phased 

reasonable intervals; whether any material manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable 

discrepancies were noticed on such having regard to the size of the Company and 

verification and if so, whether the same have the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, 

been properly dealt with in the books of certain fixed assets were physically verified by 

account; the management during the year. According to 
the information and explanations given to us, no 
material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification. 

(c) Whether the title deeds of immovable According to the information and explanation 

properties are held in the name of the given to us, the company does not have any 

company. If not, provide the details thereof; immovable properties. Accordingly, this clause 
of the order is not applicable to the company. 

Whether physical verification of inventory According to the information and explanation 
has been conducted at reasonable intervals given to us, the company has conducted 
by the management and whether any physical verification of inventory including 
material discrepancies were noticed and if construction stores at reasonable intervals and 
so, whether they have been properly dealt no material discrepancies have been noticed. 
with in the books of account; 

Whether the company has granted any loans, According to the information and explanations 

secured or unsecured to companies, firms, given to us, the Company has not granted 

Limited Liability Partnerships or other unsecured loans to Companies, Firms, Limited 

parties covered in the register maintained Liability Partnerships and other parties covered 

under section 189 of the Companies Act, in the register maintained under section 189 of 

2013. If so, the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly clauses 
3(iii) are not not applicable to the company. 

(a) Whether the terms and conditions of the Not Applicable 

grant of such loans are not prejudicial to the 
company's interest; 

(b) Whether the schedule of repayment of Not Applicable 
principal and payment of interest has been 
stipulated and whether the repayments or 
receipts are regular; 
(c) If the amount is overdue, state the total Not Applicable 



(iv) 

amount overdue for more than ninety days, 
and whether reasonable steps have been 
taken by the company for recovery of the 

rinci al and interest; 

In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, 
and security whether provisions of section 
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have 
been complied with. If not, provide the 
details thereof. 

In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company 
does not have loans, Investments, guarantees 
and security covered under Sections 185 and 186 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly 
clause 3(iv) of the order is not applicable to the 
company. 

(v) In case, the company has accepted deposits, The Company has not accepted deposits during 
whether the directives issued by .the Reserve the year and does not have any unclaimed 
Bank of India and the provisions of sections deposits as at March 31, 2019 and accordingly 
73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of clause 3(v) of the order is not applicable to the 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules company. 

(vi) 

(vii) 

framed thereunder, where applicable, have 
been complied with? If not, the nature of 
such conh·aventions be stated; If an order has 
been passed by Company Law Board or 
National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve 
Bank of India or any court or any other 
tribunal, whether the same has been 
com lied with or not? 

Whether maintenance of cost records has 
been specified by the Central Government 
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and whether such 
accounts and records have been so made and 
maintained. 

(a) whether the company is regular in 
depositing undisputed statutory dues 
including provident fund, employees' state 
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, 
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added 
tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the 
appropriate authorities and if not, the extent 
of the arrears of outstanding statutory dues 
as on the last day of the financial year 
concerned for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable, 
shall be indicated; 

The maintenance of cost records has not been 
specified by the Central Government under 
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in 
respect of Transmission and Telecom 
Operations. However, the company has not 
crossed the threshold limits of requirements of 
maintaining the Cost Records and hence the 
same has not been maintained. 

The Company has generally been regular in 
depositing undisputed statutory dues, including 
Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, 
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, 
Goods and Service Tax, Value Added Tax, 
Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other 
material statutory dues applicable to it with the 
appropriate authorities. 

where dues of income tax or sales tax or There were no undisputed amounts payable in 

6IPage 



(viii) 

(ix) 

(x) 

(xi) 

service tax or duty of customs or duty of 
excise or value added tax have not been 
deposited on account of any dispute, then 
the amounts involved and the forum where 
dispute is pending shall be mentioned. (A 
mere representation to the concerned 
Department shall not be b"eated as a 
dispute). 

Whether the company has defaulted m 
repayment of loans or borrowing to a 
financial institution, bank, Government or 
dues to debenture holders? If yes, the period 
and the amount of default to be reported (in 
case of defaults to banks, financial 
institutions, and Gove1nment, lender wise 
details to be provided). 

Whether moneys raised by way of initial 
public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments) and term loans were 
applied for the purposes for which those are 
raised. If not, the details together with delays 
or default and subsequent rectifica tion, if 
any, as may be applicable, be reported; 

whether any fraud by the company or any 
fraud on the Company by its officers or 
employees has been noticed or reported 
during the year; If yes, the nature and the 
amount involved is to be indicated; 

Whether managerial remuneration has been 
paid or provided in accordance with the 
reqms1te approvals mandated by the 
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule 
V to the Companies Act? If not, state the 
amount involved and steps taken by the 
company for securing refund of the same; 

respect of Provident Fund, Employees' State 
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, 
Value Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax I 
Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other 
material statutory dues in arrears as at March 
31, 2019 for a period of more than six months 
from the date they became payable. 

The Company has not taken any loans or 
borrowings from financial institutions, banks 
and government or has not · issued any 
debentures. Hence reporting under clause 3 
(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

According to the information and explanations 
given to us, the company has raised moneys by 
way of further issue of share capital to the 
holding company and raised term loan as inter 
corporate borrowings from the holding 
company and both share capital and loan so 
received from the holding company have been 
a lied for the ur oses for which it is received. 
To the best of our knowledge and according to 
the information and explanations given to us, no 
fraud by the Company or no material fraud on 
the Company by its officers or employees has 
been noticed or reported during the year. 

As Explained to us, the company has not paid or 
provided for managerial remuneration for the 
year under review. The key managerial 
personnel (KMP) includes CEO, CFO, being 
employees of the holding company have been 
deputed on full time basis and other KMPs 
along with other employees have been deputed 
on part time basis. No managerial remuneration 
has been paid to such representatives by the 
company except for consultancy services 
charged by the holding company based on time 
and manpower spent. Accordingly, provisions 
of section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 are 
not applicable and also clause 3(xi) of the Order 
is not A licable to the 



(xii) 

(xiii) 

L (xiv) 

(xv) 

whether the Nidhi Company has complied 
with the Net Owned Funds to Deposits in 
the ratio of 1: 20 to meet out the liability and 
whether the Nidhi Company is maintaining 
ten per cent unencumbered term deposits as 
specified in the Nidhi Rules, 2014 to meet out 
the liability; 

Whether all h·ansactions with the related 
parties are in compliance with sections 177 
and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where 
applicable and the details have been 
disclosed in the Financial Statements etc., as 
required by the applicable accounting 
standards; · 

Whether the company has made any 
preferential allotment or private placement 
of shares or fully or partly convertible 
debentures during the year under review 
and if so, as to whether the requirement of 
section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 have 
been complied with and the amount raised 
have been used for the purposes for which 
the funds were raised. If not, provide the 
details in respect of the amount involved and 
nature of non-compliance; 

Whether the company has entered into any 
non-cash h·ansactions with directors or 
persons connected with him and if so, 
whether the provisions of section 192 of 
Companies Act, 2013 have been complied 
with 

The Company is not a idhi Company and 
hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company. 

In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company is in 
compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for all 
transactions with the related parties and the 
details of related party h·ansactions have been 
disclosed in the financial statements as required 
by the applicable accounting standards. 
During the year, the Company has not made 
any preferential allotment or private placement 
of shares or fully or partly paid convertible 
debentures and hence reporting under clause 
(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, during the year 
the Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with its Directors or persons 
connected to its directors and hence provisions 
of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are 
not applicable to the Company. 

Bl Page 



(xvi) Whether the company is required to be 
registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934 and if so, whether the 
regish·ation has been obtained. 

For 1hallua 8_ 1ha llua , 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No.0019555 

Partner 

Membership No: 218355 

Place: Gurgaon 

Date: 20th May, 2019 

The Company is not required to be registered 
under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. 
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' Annexure B' to the Independent Auditor's report of Even Date in the Financial 

Statements of 
POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (11the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of POWERGRID 

NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED (11the Company") as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction 

with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Board of Dii-ectors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining 

internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 

in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Conh·ols Over Financial Reporting 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the 

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the 

safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 

and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 

information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial 

reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 

the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 

"Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the 

Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 

extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the 

Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 

controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls 

operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 

the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 

obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 

selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 

material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error . 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial conh·ols system 

over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process d esigned to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 

reporting includes those policies and procedures that, 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 

reflect the h·ansactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 

accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and 

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 

unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a 

material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 

material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 

projections of any evaluation of the internal financial conh·ols over financial reporting to 

future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 

reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company, which is company incorporated in India, have, in all 

material respects, an adequate internal financial conh·ols system over financial reporting 

and such internal financial conh"ols over financial reporting were operating effectively 

as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal conh·ol over financial reporting criteria 

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal conh"ol 

stated in the Guidance ote on Audit of Internal Financial Conh"ols Over Financial 

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) . 

For 11tallga 8. 11tallga , 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No.0019555 

Membership No: 218355 

Place: Gurgaon 

Date: 20th May, 2019 
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Chartered Accountants 

"Annexure C" to the Independent Auditor's report of Even Date in the Financial 
Statements of POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED 

Statement on the directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India 

We have verified various documents and other relevant records and also on the basis of 
information and explanations provided to us, by the management of Powergrid NM 
Transmission Limited to ascertain whether the company has complied with the section 143(5) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and give our report against each specific direction as under. 

SI. 

1 

Direction 

Whether the company has system in 
place to process all the accounting 
transactions through IT System? If yes, 
the implications of processing of 

· accounting transactions outside IT 
system on the integrity of the accounts 
along with the financial implications, if 
any, may be stated. 

2 Whether there is any restructuring of an 
existing loan or cases of waiver/ write off 
of debts / loans/ interest etc., made by a 

Auditors Remarks 

The company has system in place to 
process all the accounting transactions 
through IT System. 

During the process of audit, we have not 
come across any financial transactions 
processed outside of the IT System. 

Hence, there is no financial implication of 
processing trat1Sactions outside IT System 
and also, the integrity of the accounts is 
not affected. 

There is no restructuring of existing loan 
or cases of waiver/write off of debts / 
loans/interest etc., 

_______ --~=~~~t? ____ th~ __ 5?~2~Y---~~~--- -!? ____ ~_!:e: ... ·-····· -·-·· -- -·--- -. __ ___ _ __ .. ______________ -- ··. 
1 company's inability to repay the loan? If 

3 

yes, the financial impact may be stated. 

-Whether-funds. received/-receivable for 
specific schemes from Central/State 

There . are no .funds received· / receivable 
for specific schemes from Central / State 

agencies were properly accounted for / agencies. 
utilized as per its term and conditions? 
List the cases of deviation. 
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MAN DAYS FOR AUDIT OF 

M/S. POWERGRID NM TRANSMISSION LIMITED 

(CIN U40106DL2011GOI219542) 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2018-19 

Name Man Days/ Hours DA paid/ payable 
Spent in Audit (Rs.) 

a) CA CS Prashanth 4days 
1200 

Partner 
b) Chartered Accountant -

Employees 
l. CA Raghavendra 10 days 1000 

Hegde 

c) Assistants/ Staff 750 
l. Mr. Bibin Joseph 15 davs 

TOTAL 

Rupees Nine Thousand Nine Hundred and Fifty Only 

For 11tal/ya 8.. 11tallya 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm No: 00195 S 

Partner 
M.No. 218355 

Date: 20.05.2019 
Place: Gurgaon 

Chartered Accountants 

Out of pocket 
expenses paid/ 
payable (Rs.) (TA) 

3000 

1000 

3000 

9,950 

Head Office : No. 29/2., Parijatha Complex, First Floor, Race Course Road, Bangalore - 560 001 
Mysuru Branch : No. 73, 3rd Main, Yadavgiri, Mysuru - 570 020 

Davangere Branch : No. 25, Akkamahadevi Samaj Complex, 3rd Main, 6th Cross, P J Extension, Davangere - 577002 
E-mail : mallyaandmallya@gmail.com Website : www.mallyamallya.com 


